
CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

AGENDA 

 

  

This shall serve as notice that the next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council 

will be held on Monday, April 5, 2010, at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers,  

245 Washington Street, Watertown, New York. 

 

MOMENT OF SILENCE  

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 

 

PRESENTATION 
 

 Retirement of Fire Chief Milton M. Sayre 

 

PRIVILEGE OF THE FLOOR 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

 

 Resolution No. 1 - Accepting Bid for 13 Heat Pumps at the Flower Memorial 

    Library, Derouin’s Plumbing and Heating 

 

 Resolution No. 2 -  Accepting Bid for Slurry Pumps for Pollution Control 

    Facility, Fluid Kinetics Inc. 

 

 Resolution No. 3 - Summer 2010 Sidewalk Improvement Special Assessment 

    Program, District #6 

 

 Resolution No. 4 - Request for Site Plan Approval for the Construction of  

    180 Square Feet, 650 Square Feet and 2,000 Square Feet 

    Building Additions for Tilted Kilt at 1050 Arsenal Street, 

    Parcel No. 8-47-101.001 

 

ORDINANCES  
 

 Ordinance No. 1 -  Approving the Zone Amendment Request Submitted by  

    Ryan Churchill of GYMO, P.C. on behalf of Patrick  

    Donegan of Millennium Development, to amend Planned 

    Development District No. 23, Parcels Nos. 8-53-102.001, 

    8-53-103.100, 8-53-106.100, 8-53-107, 8-53-108.100, 

    8-53-110, and 8-53-114 



LOCAL LAW 

 

 Local Law No. 1 - Amending Local Law No. 1 of 1994 as Amended by 

Local Law No. 6 of 1995, Local Law No. 1 of 2001, 

Local Law No. 1 of 2003, Local Law No. 7 of 2005, and 

Local Law No. 14 of 2005, Revising the Designated 

Boundaries of the Watertown Empire Zone 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 7:30 p.m. - Public Hearing on Draft Local Waterfront Revitalization Program 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

STAFF REPORTS 

 

1. Bi-Annual Shut-Offs, Delinquent Water and Sewer Bills 

 

2. Federal Appropriations Request, Senator Charles E. Schumer 

 

3. Fiscal Year 2008-09 Audit Report 

 

4. Funding Request, Jefferson County Agricultural Society 

 

5. Annual Drinking Water Quality Report for 2009 

 

6. Grant from Jefferson County Local Development Corporation 

 

7. Boards and Commissions 

 

8. 2010-11 City Council Goals and Objectives 

 

9. Executive Summary Report, Short Term, High Intensity Monitoring Program 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

WORK SESSION 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETING IS MONDAY, 

APRIL 19, 2010. 



Res No. 1 

        March 31, 2010 

 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

From:  Mary M. Corriveau, City Manager 

 

Subject: Accepting Bid for 13 Heat Pumps at the Flower Memorial Library, 

  Derouin’s Plumbing and Heating 

 

 

  The City Purchasing Department advertised and received sealed bids for the 

purchase of a 13 new and unused Heat Pumps to replace the existing units at the Flower Memorial 

Library.  The installation work will be performed by City staff.   

 

Invitations to bid were issued to five (5) prospective bidders with two (2) bids 

submitted to the Purchasing Department where they were publicly opened and read on Monday, 

March 29, 2010. 

 

City Purchasing Agent Robert J. Cleaver reviewed the bids received with Shawn R. 

McWayne, Code Enforcement Supervisor.  It is their recommendation that the City Council accept 

the bid submitted by Derouin’s Plumbing and Heating, Watertown, New York, in the amount of 

$29,221.00 as the lowest bidder meeting our specifications. 

 

The bids submitted are detailed in the attached report of Mr. Cleaver.  The funding 

to support the purchase of this equipment was appropriated in the Library Fund operating budget 

for 2009-2010. 

 

  A resolution accepting the bid has been prepared for City Council consideration.   

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 1                                                                                        April 5, 2010 
 

    RESOLUTION   

 
    Page 1 of 1 
 
 
Accepting Bid for 13 Heat Pumps at the  
Flower Memorial Library, 
Derouin’s Plumbing and Heating 
 
 
 
 

 

 YEA NAY 

 
Council Member BURNS, Roxanne M. 

  

 
Council Member BUTLER, Joseph M. Jr. 

  

 
Council Member MACALUSO, Teresa R. 

  

 
Council Member SMITH, Jeffrey M. 

  

 
Mayor GRAHAM, Jeffrey E. 

  

 
                     Total ……………………….. 

  

   

 

 

Introduced by 

 

 

____________________________________ 

  

 

  WHEREAS the City Purchasing Department has advertised and received sealed 

bids for the purchase of 13 new and unused Heat Pumps to replace the existing units at the 

Flower Memorial Library for installation by City staff, and 

 

  WHEREAS invitations to bid were issued to five (5) prospective bidders, with 

two (2) bids being received and publicly opened and read in the City Purchasing Department on 

Monday, March 29, 2010, and 

 

  WHEREAS City Purchasing Agent Robert J. Cleaver and Shawn R. McWayne, 

Code Enforcement Supervisor, reviewed the bids received and are recommending the acceptance 

of the bid submitted by Derouin’s Plumbing and Heating, Watertown, New York, in the amount 

of $29,221.00 as the lowest qualifying bid meeting the City’s specifications, 

 

  NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 

Watertown, New York hereby accepts the bid in the amount of $29,221.00 submitted by 

Derouin’s Plumbing and Heating, 139 Mill Street, Watertown, New York, for the purchase of 13 

new and unused Heat Pumps. 

 

 

 

 

Seconded by  





Res No. 2 

        March 31, 2010 

 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

From:  Mary M. Corriveau, City Manager 

 

Subject: Accepting Bid for Slurry Pumps for Pollution 

  Control Facility, Fluid Kinetics Inc. 

 

 

  The City Purchasing Department advertised and received sealed bids for the 

purchase of a Scrubber Recycle Pump and an Ash Pump to replace the existing units at our 

Pollution Control Facility for installation by City staff.   

 

Invitations to bid were issued to seven (7) prospective bidders with one (1) bid 

submitted to the Purchasing Department where it was publicly opened and read on Monday, 

March 29, 2010. 

 

City Purchasing Agent Robert J. Cleaver reviewed the bid received with Michael 

J. Sligar, Chief Waste Water Treatment Plant Operator.  It is their recommendation that the City 

Council accept the bid submitted by Fluid Kinetics Inc., Orchard Park, New York, in the total 

amount of $20,480.00 as the lowest bidder meeting our specifications.   

 

The bid submitted is detailed in the attached report of Mr. Cleaver.  The funding 

to support the purchase of this equipment was appropriated Sewer Fund operating budget for 

2009-2010. 

 

  A resolution accepting the bid has been prepared for City Council consideration.   

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
Resolution No.  2                                                                                       April 5, 2010 
 

    RESOLUTION   

 
    Page 1 of 1 
 
 
Accepting Bid for Slurry Pumps 
for Pollution Control Facility,  
Fluid Kinetics Inc. 
 
 
 
 

 

 YEA NAY 

 
Council Member BURNS, Roxanne M. 

  

 
Council Member BUTLER, Joseph M. Jr. 

  

 
Council Member MACALUSO, Teresa R. 

  

 
Council Member SMITH, Jeffrey M. 

  

 
Mayor GRAHAM, Jeffrey E. 

  

 
                     Total ……………………….. 

  

   

 

 

Introduced by 

 

 

____________________________________ 

  

 

  WHEREAS the City Purchasing Department has advertised and received sealed 

bids for the purchase of a Scrubber Recycle Pump and an Ash Pump to replace the existing units 

at our Pollution Control Facility for installation by City staff, and 

 

  WHEREAS invitations to bid were issued to seven (7) prospective bidders, with 

one (1) bid being received and publicly opened and read in the City Purchasing Department on 

Monday, March 29, 2010, and 

 

  WHEREAS City Purchasing Agent Robert J. Cleaver and Michael Sligar, Chief 

Waste Water Treatment Plant Operator, reviewed the bid received and are recommending the 

acceptance of the bid submitted by Fluid Kinetics Inc., 251 Thorn Avenue, Orchard Park, New 

York, in the total amount of $20,480.00 as the lowest qualifying bid meeting the City’s 

specifications,  

 

  NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 

Watertown, New York hereby accepts the bid in the amount of $20,480.00 submitted by Fluid 

Kinetics Inc., 251 Thorn Avenue, Orchard Park, New York, for the purchase of a two new and 

unused slurry pumps. 

 

 

 

 

Seconded by  





215 
 

G8130 – Sewage Treatment Plant 

Fiscal Year 2009-10 

                                         Equipment Requests 

Scrubber Recycle Pump:  $11,600 

The incineration system is served by one scrubber 

water recycle pump.  Scrubber water is reused several 

times before the ash laden water is transferred to the 

ash lagoon.  The recycle pump is an original unit, 

installed in 1981.  The pump is well beyond its useful 

life, continued maintenance and repairs is becoming 

impractical and the unit is, therefore, scheduled for 

replacement this year. 

 

 

Auto Sampler (Effluent B):  $8,000 

Fixed auto samplers, refrigerated units, are 

employed to collect wastewater samples that are then 

analyzed for pollutants, the results of which are 

regularly reported to the NYSDEC (highlighting the 

critical sensitivity of the equipment).  The Effluent B 

fixed auto sampler was installed in 1988, has 

reached its useful life, is beginning to exhibit 

difficulties rendering repairs impractical, and needs 

replacing. 

 

 

Scum Mixer (Thickener #2):  $5,500 

Each of the Facility’s 3 gravity sludge thickeners is 

configured with a scum mixer unit.  The mixer unit for 

Thickener #2, installed in the late 1970’s, is significantly 

beyond is useful life.  Continued maintenance and repairs 

are no longer practical and replacement is necessary. 



215 
 

 

Cloth Washer Pump:  $26,000 

The cloth washer pump is a specialty made high 

pressure unit that provides cleaning spray water for 

the filter press cloths that cover the plates for filter 

cake formation.  The current pump is the original, 

installed in 1981 and has been rebuilt several times.  

It is well beyond its useful life and is scheduled for 

replacement. 

 

 

Ash Pump:  $10,000  

The incineration system is served by two scrubber 

ash pumps that transfer ash laden scrubber water to 

the lagoon in the northwest quadrant of the facility 

compound.  The ash pumps are original, installed in 

1981 and are well beyond their useful life.  The first 

of two is scheduled for replacement this year. 



Res No. 3    

 

        March 31, 2010 

 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

From:  Mary M. Corriveau, City Manager 

 

Subject: Summer 2010 Sidewalk Improvement Special Assessment 

   

 

  During the City Council work session held on October 13, 2009 City 

Engineer Kurt Hauk presented the proposed areas to be included in the Sidewalk 

Improvement Program for the 2010 construction season, Districts 5 and 6.  Earlier this 

year, the City Council approved District 5, which will begin in the spring and be 

completed prior to July 1, 2010.   

 

  Staff would like to be in a position to begin District 6 in July 2010.  In 

order to meet the required timelines, we will need to schedule a Public Hearing for the 

June 7, 2010 City Council meeting.  By this date, the City Council will have adopted the 

budget for Fiscal Year 2010-2011 and will be able to commit to doing the work.   

 

As in previous years, the work performed will be incorporated in a Special 

Assessment Program that provides property owners with an opportunity to pay the costs 

associated with the improvements to the sidewalks over a ten-year period.  Property 

owners will have the option of having the City perform the work, hiring a contractor to 

do the work, or doing the work themselves.     

 

 As you will recall, under the Charter, provisions related to Special 

Assessment programs, the City must send notices to all the property owners telling them 

that they will be included in this year’s program and that there will be a public hearing to 

consider whether all or a portion of the cost for the proposed sidewalk improvements 

should be a charge or expense upon the abutting property owner.  While the City Council 

can’t officially determine what the charge will be to the property owners until after a 

public hearing, staff will prepare the notices to property owners using the $5.00 per sq.ft. 

price, which is the price charged to those who have participated in the program since the 

inception of the Sidewalk Improvement Special Assessment, unless the City Council 

wishes to readdress the proposed charge to the taxpayer.  The District 6, summer 2010 

program will include the properties detailed on the attached report from City Engineer 

Kurt Hauk.   

 

In support of the requirement for a Public Hearing, the attached resolution 

instructs staff to send notices to all of the property owners and schedule the Public 

Hearing for Monday, June 7, 2010, at 7:30 p.m., in City Council Chambers.  



 
 
Resolution No. 3                                                                                           April 5, 2010                
 

    RESOLUTION 

 
                  Page 1 of 1   
 
 
Summer 2010 Sidewalk Improvement Special 
Assessment Program, District #6 
 

 

 YEA NAY 

 
Council Member BURNS, Roxanne M. 

  

 
Council Member BUTLER, Joseph M. Jr 

  

 
Council Member MACALUSO, Teresa R. 

  

 
Council Member SMITH, Jeffrey M. 

  

 
Mayor GRAHAM, Jeffrey E. 

  

 
                     Total ……………………….. 

  

 

  

 

 

Introduced by 

 

 

____________________________________ 

 

  

WHEREAS the City Engineering Department has inspected sidewalks within the City of 

Watertown, and 

 

 WHEREAS it has been determined that the condition of sidewalks on certain streets are 

in need of repair and/or replacement, and 

 

 WHEREAS the City Council of the City of Watertown feels it is in the overall public 

interest to provide property owners within the City of Watertown with an opportunity to pay for 

said repair/replacement work through a Special Assessment Program, 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that a public hearing will be held on Monday, 

June 7, 2010, at 7:30 p.m. at which time property owners included in the Special Assessment 

Program will have an opportunity to make comments on whether all or a portion of the cost for 

proposed sidewalk improvements should be a charge or expense upon the abutting property 

owners, and 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Engineering Department will send notices to 

all property owners notifying them of their inclusion in this year’s program and that there will be 

a public hearing to consider whether all or a portion of the cost for proposed sidewalk 

improvements should be a charge or expense upon the abutting property owners, and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the properties included in the Summer 2010, District 

#6, Sidewalk Special Assessment Program are detailed on the attached report. 

 

 

 

 

Seconded by 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED SIDEWALK PROJECT WORK AREAS FOR 2010 

 

April 1, 2010 

Proposed By: Sean O’Connor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  The purpose of this report is to provide information so that the next locations can be 

chosen for District #6 of the sidewalk program. 

   

  As seen by the following pictures most of the problems with the sidewalks are your 

standard separation, wrong slope and heaving problems. Surface problems, i.e. spalling, 

cracks, and edges and improper material also occur throughout the district.  

 

 

PHOTO 1: Lynde St. W  District #6 
 

 
 

 

PHOTO 2: Lynde St. W  District #6 

 
Table A: Estimated Area Of Work Per Street 

 



 

 

Street 

Approx. 

Total 

SF Area 

% Non-

chargeable 

SQFT 

Est. 

LF of 

Work 

Est. 

SF Area 

Of Work 

District #6     

Curtis St. 286 5% 68 272 

Davidson St. 420 5% 100 400 

Leray St. 252 5% 60 240 

Lynde St. W 3192 5% 760 3040 

Thompson St. 219 5% 52 208 

Total 4368   4160 

 

 

  Due to the reduced funding, we will not hire part time workers. A three person DPW 

crew will suffice for the time frame of the summer with the work that is presented. Based 

on a 140 SQ/FT per worker per day, a 3 person crew should produce 560 SQFT/week, 

taking into account bad weather and delays. This would approximately take nine weeks 

per district. The start date for District 6 is tentatively set for July 1
st
. This allows for work 

to continue for the duration of the construction season. 

 

Proposed Residents in District #6: 

 
# Street Owner Tax Parcel 

538 Curtis St Denner Stephen E 2-03-215.000  

539 Curtis St Gilchrist Phyllis 2-03-313.000  

541 Davidson St Coniglio Joseph M 2-03-223.000  

552 Leray St Lawrence Danza 2-03-311.000 

307 Lynde St W Whitlock David,Kandis 2-03-222.000  

311 Lynde St W Pound Francis A, V 2-03-221.000  

317 Lynde St W Fay John J, Habib Chana N 2-03-220.000  

320 Lynde St W Sacred Heart Church 2-04-102.000  

323 Lynde St W Thomas Christopher S 2-03-219.000  

327 Lynde St W Whelan Terrance J 2-03-218.000  

332 Lynde St W Sacred Heart Church 2-04-104.000  

333 Lynde St W Williams Richard L 2-03-217.000  

344 Lynde St W Detraglia Michael W, P 2-04-215.000  

348 Lynde St W Everett Margery 2-04-216.000  

352 Lynde St W Hartl Lisa A, Adair John P 2-04-217.000  

358 Lynde St W Willard Justin P 2-04-218.000  

362 Lynde St W Brouse Kevin R, Stickel Dorinda 2-04-219.000  

365 Lynde St W Merrill Jack F/Patricia A 2-03-312.000  

336 Main St W Curtis Apartments Assoc. 2-03-205.000 

 



Res No. 4        

 

       March 30, 2010 

 

 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

From:  Kenneth A. Mix, Planning and Community Development Coordinator 

 

Subject: Request for Site Plan Approval for the Construction of 180 Square Feet, 

  650 Square Feet and 2,000 Square Feet Building Additions for Tilted Kilt 

  at 1050 Arsenal Street, Parcel No. 8-47-101.001 

 

 

  A request has been submitted by Timothy F. Titus of Aubertine and 

Currier on behalf of Crazy Irishmen Holdings LLC for the above subject Site Plan 

Approval.   

 

  The Planning Board reviewed the request at its March 2, 2010 meeting 

and adopted a motion recommending that the City Council approve the Site Plan with the 

conditions listed in the resolution.  Copies of the report prepared for the Planning Board 

and its Minutes can be found on the City’s website under “Budgets, Agendas & 

Minutes.” 

 

  A revised site plan that addresses the three conditions pertaining to 

landscaping was submitted to the City Engineer on March 29, 2010.  A copy of the 

revised plan is included in each Council Member’s agenda package. 

 

  The Jefferson County Planning Board reviewed the Site Plan at its 

meeting held on March 30, 2010 and adopted a motion that the project does not have any 

significant County-wide or inter-municipal issues and is of local concern only. 

 

  This project can be considered a Type II Action pursuant to SEQRA 

because it is a commercial addition of less than 4,000 square feet.  The City Council 

therefore is not required to make an environmental determination. 

 

  The resolution prepared for City Council consideration states that the 

project is a Type II Action and approves the Site Plan submitted to the City Engineering 

Department on March 29, 2010 with conditions Nos. 1 through 4 as recommended by the 

Planning Board. 

 



 
Resolution No.  4                                                                                      April 5, 2010 
 

   RESOLUTION   

 
    Page 1 of 2 
 
 
Approving Site Plan for the Construction of  
180 Square Feet, 650 Square Feet and 2,000 Square Feet 
Building Additions for Tilted Kilt at 1050 Arsenal Street, 
Parcel No. 8-47-101.001 
 
 

 YEA NAY 

Council Member BURNS, Roxanne M.   

Council Member BUTLER, Joseph M. Jr.   

Council Member MACALUSO, Teresa R.   

Council Member SMITH, Jeffrey M.   

Mayor GRAHAM, Jeffrey E.   

 
                     Total ……………………….. 

  

 

Introduced by 

 

 

__________________________________ 

  

   

WHEREAS Timothy F. Titus of Aubertine and Currier, on behalf of Crazy Irishmen 

Holdings LLC, has made an application for Site Plan Approval for the construction of 180 square 

feet, 650 square feet and 2,000 square feet building additions for Tilted Kilt at 1050 Arsenal 

Street, Parcel No. 8-47-101.001, and 

 

WHEREAS the Planning Board of the City of Watertown reviewed the site plan at its 

meeting held on March 2, 2010, and recommended that the City Council of the City of 

Watertown approve the site plan, contingent upon the following: 
 

1. The applicant shall provide accurate fire flow information and calculations 

to the City prior to construction, and the service line should be sized as 

determined from the calculations. 

2. All water line work shall be done in accordance with City of Watertown 

standard specifications and the following note shall be added to the 

drawings:  “The Water Department requirements supersede all other plans 

and specifications provided.” 

3. The applicant shall provide calculations for sanitary flows and grease trap 

sizing along with calculations and a finalized detail for the duplex pump. 

4. The applicant shall provide a copy of all correspondence and submittals to 

NYS DEC for the SPDES Permit. 

5. Plan Sheet C 100 should be revised to show all proposed landscaping and 

a landscape schedule with proposed species, sizes, quantities, etc. 

6. Three small to medium maturing trees and larger maturing shrubs should 

be added in the existing landscaped area located behind the sidewalk in the 

front of the property. 

7. Two landscaped islands with trees and landscaping shall be added on each 

end of the middle row of parking in front of the building. 

and,  

 

 



 
Resolution No.  4                                                                                      April 5, 2010 
 

   RESOLUTION   

 
    Page 2 of 2 
 
 
Approving Site Plan for the Construction of  
180 Square Feet, 650 Square Feet and 2,000 Square Feet 
Building Additions for Tilted Kilt at 1050 Arsenal Street, 
Parcel No. 8-47-101.001 
 
 

 YEA NAY 

Council Member BURNS, Roxanne M.   

Council Member BUTLER, Joseph M. Jr.   

Council Member MACALUSO, Teresa R.   

Council Member SMITH, Jeffrey M.   

Mayor GRAHAM, Jeffrey E.   

 
                     Total ……………………….. 

  

 

 

WHEREAS the applicant submitted a revised site plan to the City Engineer on March 

29, 2010 that addressed conditions 5 through 7 listed above, and 

 

WHEREAS the Jefferson County Planning Board reviewed the site plan at its meeting 

held on March 30, 2010, and adopted a motion that the project does not have any significant 

County-wide or intermunicipal issues and is of local concern only, and 

  

WHEREAS the City Council has determined that the project is a Type II Action 

requiring no review under the State Environmental Quality Review Act, 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Watertown, New York that site plan approval is hereby granted to Timothy F. Titus of Aubertine 

and Currier, on behalf of Crazy Irishmen Holdings LLC, for the construction of 180 square feet, 

650 square feet and 2,000 square feet building additions for Tilted Kilt at 1050 Arsenal Street, 

Parcel No. 8-47-101.001 as shown on plans submitted to the City Engineer on March 29, 2010, 

contingent upon the applicant and meeting conditions 1 through 4 listed above in the City 

Planning Board’s recommendation, and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that it is an express condition of this site plan approval 

that the applicant provide the City Engineer with sufficient copies of any change in stamped 

plans forming the basis for this approval at the same time such plans are provided to the 

contractor.  If plans are not provided as required by this condition of site plan approval, the City 

Codes Enforcement Officer shall direct that work on the project site shall immediately cease until 

such time as the City Engineer is provided with the revised stamped plans.  Additionally, any 

change in the approved plan which, in the opinion of the City Engineer, would require Amended 

Site Plan approval, will result in immediate cessation of the affected portion of the project work 

until such time as the amended site plan is approved.  The City Codes Enforcement Officer is 

requested to periodically review on-site plans to determine whether the City Engineer has been 

provided with plans as required by this approval. 

 

 

 

 

 

Seconded by 







Ord No. 1        

 

       March 30, 2010 

 

 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

From:  Kenneth A. Mix, Planning and Community Development Coordinator 

 

Subject: Approving the Zone Amendment Request Submitted by Ryan Churchill of 

  GYMO P.C. on behalf of Patrick Donegan of Millennium Development to 

  Amend Planned Development District No. 23, Parcels Nos. 8-53-102.001, 

  8-53-103.100, 8-53-106.100, 8-53-107, 8-53-108.100, 8-53-110 and  

  8-53-114 

 

 

  The above subject request proposes to amend the approved plan and 

allowed signage schedule for Planned Development District No. 23.  The City Planning 

Board reviewed the request at its meetings held on March 2 and March 18, 2010 and 

adopted a motion recommending that the City Council approve the Amendment on the 

condition that four modifications are made to the plan.  Copies of the reports prepared for 

the Planning Board and its Minutes can be found on the City’s website under “Budgets, 

Agendas & Minutes.” 

 

  A revised plan with the recommended modifications was submitted to the 

City Engineer on March 29, 2010.  A copy of the revised plan is included in each Council 

Member’s agenda package. 

 

  The Jefferson County Planning Board reviewed the request at its meeting 

held on March 30, 2010 and adopted a motion that the amendment to the Planned 

Development District does not have any significant County-wide or inter-municipal 

issues and is of local concern only. 

 

  The Ordinance prepared for City Council consideration approves the 

Planned Development District plan submitted on March 29
th

 and the proposed sign 

schedule.  A public hearing must be held on the ordinance before it may be voted on by 

the City Council.  It is recommended that a public hearing be scheduled for 7:30 p.m. on 

Monday, April 19, 2010. 

 

 

   

 



 
 
Ordinance No.    1                                                                                    April 5, 2010 
 

   ORDINANCE   

 
    Page 1 of 3 
 
Approving the Zone Amendment Request 
Submitted by Ryan Churchill of GYMO, P.C. on 
behalf of Patrick Donegan of Millennium 
Development, to amend Planned Development 
District No. 23, Parcels Nos. 8-53-102.001, 8-
53-103.100, 8-53-106.100, 8-53-107, 8-53-
108.100, 8-53-110, and 8-53-114  
 

 YEA NAY 

 
Council Member BURNS, Roxanne M. 

  

 
Council Member BUTLER, Joseph M. Jr. 

  

 
Council Member MACALUSO, Teresa R. 

  

 
Council Member SMITH, Jeffrey M. 

  

 
Mayor GRAHAM, Jeffrey E. 

  

 
                     Total ……………………….. 

  

 
Introduced by 

 

__________________________________ 

  

 

BE IT ORDAINED where Ryan Churchill, Project Engineer of GYMO, P.C. has made 

application by petition filed with the City Clerk, pursuant to Section 83 of the New York General 

City Law on behalf of Patrick Donegan of Millennium Development to amend the approved plan 

and allowed signage schedule for Planned Development District No. 23, Parcel Nos. 8-53-

102.001, 8-53-103.100, 8-53-106.100, 8-53-107, 8-53-108.100, 8-53-110, and 8-53-114, and 

 

 WHEREAS the Planning Board of the City of Watertown considered the request at its 

meetings held on March 2 and March 18, 2010, and adopted a motion recommending that the 

City Council approve the amendment to the approved plan and allowed signage schedule 

contingent upon the plan being modified as follows: 

 

1. Restaurant No. 4 must be shifted to the south to provide a separation between 

the parking area and the future drive aisle. 

2. The sidewalk along the eastern most north-south drive must be extended to the 

south past Restaurant No. 3 and the proposed bank. 

3. The north-south pedestrian route that runs in front of the Holiday Inn Express 

and extends in front of the Hilton Garden Inn must be extended to the north 

across the big box parking lot. 

4. The applicant must provide an east-west sidewalk between Restaurant 3 and 

Retail 2 that connects the two hotels with Western Boulevard to provide a safe 

pedestrian connection from both of the hotels to the future building sites. 

and 

 

 WHEREAS the applicant submitted a revised plan to the City Engineer on March 29, 

2010 that included the four modifications listed above, and 

 

 WHEREAS the Jefferson County Planning Board reviewed the request at its meeting 

held on March 30, 2010, pursuant to General Municipal Law Section 239-m and adopted a 

motion that the project does not have any significant county-wide or inter-municipal issues and is 

of local concern only, and  

 

 WHEREAS a public hearing was held on the proposed amendment on April 19, 2010, 

after due public notice, and 

  

 



 
 
Ordinance No.    1                                                                                    April 5, 2010 
 

   ORDINANCE   

 
    Page 2 of 3 
 
Approving the Zone Amendment Request 
Submitted by Ryan Churchill of GYMO, P.C. on 
behalf of Patrick Donegan of Millennium 
Development, to amend Planned Development 
District No. 23, Parcels Nos. 8-53-102.001, 8-
53-103.100, 8-53-106.100, 8-53-107, 8-53-
108.100, 8-53-110, and 8-53-114  
 

 YEA NAY 

 
Council Member BURNS, Roxanne M. 

  

 
Council Member BUTLER, Joseph M. Jr. 

  

 
Council Member MACALUSO, Teresa R. 

  

 
Council Member SMITH, Jeffrey M. 

  

 
Mayor GRAHAM, Jeffrey E. 

  

 
                     Total ……………………….. 

  

 
 

WHEREAS the City Council has made a declaration of Negative Findings of the impacts 

of the proposed zone change according to the requirements of SEQRA, and 

 

 WHEREAS the City Council deems it in the best interest of the citizens of the City of 

Watertown to approve the amendment to Planned Development District #23,  

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED that the preliminary plan for Planned 

Development District #23, Parcel Nos. 8-53-102.001, 8-53-103.100, 8-53-106.100, 8-53-107, 8-

53-108.100, 8-53-110, and 8-53-114, is hereby amended as shown on the plan submitted to the 

City Engineering Department on March 29, 2010, and 

 

 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the signage schedule for Planned Development 

District # 23 is hereby amended so that the allowed signage for the district is as follows: 

 

1. One freestanding sign structure not to exceed 80’ in height with 11 two-sided panels 

is allowed.  The top panel shall not exceed 240 sq. ft., one panel shall not exceed 175 

sq. ft., and the other 9 panels shall not exceed 125 sq. ft. each for a total maximum 

area of 1,540 sq. ft. measured on one side. 

 

2.  Each building shall be limited to the following signs on the building: 

 

 Hotel (Holiday Inn Express)    600 sq. ft. 

 Restaurant (Ruby Tuesday)    300 sq. ft. 

 Restaurant (Ponderosa)    300 sq. ft. 

 Restaurant (Buffalo Wild Wings)   300 sq. ft. 

 Retail (AT&T)     300 sq. ft. 

 Proposed Hotel (Hilton Garden Inn)   600 sq. ft. 

 Proposed Bank     300 sq. ft. 

 Proposed Retail 1     300 sq. ft. 

 Proposed Retail 2     300 sq. ft. 

 Proposed Restaurant 2    300 sq. ft. 

 Proposed Restaurant 3    300 sq. ft. 

 Proposed Restaurant 4    300 sq. ft. 

 Proposed Restaurant 5    300 sq. ft. 

 Proposed Big Box Store    800 sq. ft. 

 

3. Five two-sided billboards with each side limited in size to 14’ by 48’ are allowed. 

 

and, 



 
 
Ordinance No.    1                                                                                    April 5, 2010 
 

   ORDINANCE   

 
    Page 3 of 3 
 
Approving the Zone Amendment Request 
Submitted by Ryan Churchill of GYMO, P.C. on 
behalf of Patrick Donegan of Millennium 
Development, to amend Planned Development 
District No. 23, Parcels Nos. 8-53-102.001, 8-
53-103.100, 8-53-106.100, 8-53-107, 8-53-
108.100, 8-53-110, and 8-53-114  
 

 YEA NAY 

 
Council Member BURNS, Roxanne M. 

  

 
Council Member BUTLER, Joseph M. Jr. 

  

 
Council Member MACALUSO, Teresa R. 

  

 
Council Member SMITH, Jeffrey M. 

  

 
Mayor GRAHAM, Jeffrey E. 

  

 
                     Total ……………………….. 

  

 
 

 

 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED this amendment to the Zoning Ordinance of the City of 

Watertown shall take effect as soon as it is published once in the official newspaper of the City 

of Watertown, or printed as the City Manager directs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Seconded by 







Local Law No. 1        

 

       March 31, 2010 

 

 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

From:  Kenneth A. Mix, Planning and Community Development Coordinator 

 

Subject: Amending Local Law No. 1 of 1994 as Amended by Local Law No. 6 of 

1995, Local Law No. 1 of 2001, Local Law No. 1 of 2003, Local Law  

No. 7 of 2005 and Local Law No. 14 of 2005, Revising the Designated 

Boundaries of the Watertown Empire Zone 

 

 

The Watertown Empire Zone Administrative Board has received a request 

from Florelle Tissue LLC to be designated as a Regionally Significant Project within the 

Empire Zone.  One of the criteria for a Regionally Significant Project is that the business 

must create at least 50 manufacturing jobs.  The Regionally Significant Project 

designation allows a business to be eligible for Empire Zone benefits without actually 

being within the boundaries of the Empire Zone. 

 

Florelle Tissue will be locating at the former Brownville Specialty Paper 

facility in the Town of Hounsfield.  They will make paper napkins and towels and will 

export the majority of their products to Canada.   

 

The State has determined that the project is eligible and it can designate 

the business as a Regionally Significant Manufacturing Project after the City Council and 

Town Board amend their local laws that set the boundaries of the Empire Zone.  The 

Town of Hounsfield has also adopted a resolution concurring with the inclusion of the 

project within the Empire Zone. 

 

The Watertown Empire Zone Administrative Board adopted a resolution 

on March 24, 2010 recommending that the City and Town of Watertown approve the 

designation of the business and property.   

 

The Local Law prepared for City Council consideration amends the last 

Local Law, which completely described the revamped Empire Zone boundary.  A public 

hearing must be held before the Local Law may be approved.  It is recommended that the 

public hearing be scheduled for 7:30 p.m. on Monday, April 19, 2010.   



 
 
Local Law No. 1 of 2010                                                                             April 5, 2010 
 

ORDINANCE 
 
Amending Local Law No. 1 of 1994 as Amended by 
Local Law No. 6 of 1995, Local Law No. 1 of 2001, 
Local Law No. 1 of 2003, Local Law No. 7 of 2005, and 
Local Law No. 14 of 2005, Revising the Designated 
Boundaries of the Watertown Empire Zone 
 
                 Page 1 of 1 

 YEA NAY 

 
Council Member BURNS, Roxanne M. 

  

 
Council Member BUTLER, Joseph M. Jr. 

  

 
Council Member MACALUSO, Teresa R. 

  

 
Council Member SMITH, Jeffrey M. 

  

 
Mayor GRAHAM, Jeffrey E. 

  

 
                     Total ……………………….. 

  

 

 
 
 

Introduced by 

 

__________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS the Watertown Empire Zone (formerly Economic Development Zone) was 

designated as such on July 27, 1994 by the New York State Department of Economic 

Development, and 

 

WHEREAS Florelle Tissue LLC is proposing the addition of at least 50 manufacturing 

jobs to Jefferson County at a manufacturing facility at 1 Bridge Street, Brownville, New York, in 

the Town of Hounsfield at Tax Parcel No. 73.18-1-2.3, and 

 

WHEREAS the project is not within the City and Town of Watertown Empire Zone 

boundaries, and 

 

WHEREAS the New York State Department of Economic Development has determined 

that the proposed expansion is eligible for Empire Zone benefits as a regionally significant 

manufacturing project under § 957(d)(i) of the General Municipal Law, and 

 

WHEREAS the Zone Administrative Board of the City and Town of Watertown Empire 

Zone has determined that the proposed expansion is eligible for Empire Zone benefits as a 

regionally significant project under § 957(d)(i) of the General Municipal Law and has 

recommended that the City and Town of Watertown amend the boundary of the Empire Zone to 

include Florelle Tissue LLC, 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Watertown 

that Schedule “A” of Local Law No. 14 of 2005 is amended to add the Florelle Tissue LLC 

manufacturing project on Tax Parcel No. 73.18-1-2.3 in the Town of Hounsfield as a regionally 

significant manufacturing project in the Watertown Empire Zone and it hereby requests that the 

New York State Commissioner of Economic Development approve the designation of said 

regionally significant manufacturing project. 

 

 

                           

Seconded by 





7:30 p.m. – Public Hearing        

 

       March 30, 2010 

 

 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

From:  Kenneth A. Mix, Planning and Community Development Coordinator 

 

Subject: Public Hearing on Draft Local Waterfront Revitalization Program 

 

 

  A public hearing on the Draft Local Waterfront Revitalization Program 

(LWRP) has been scheduled for 7:30 p.m. on Monday, April 5, 2010.  The Draft LWRP 

may be viewed on the Planning Office’s page of the City’s website, www.watertown-

ny.gov. 

 

 

 

 

   

 



      

       March 31, 2010 

 

 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

From:  Mary M. Corriveau, City Manager 

 

Subject: Bi-Annual Shut-Offs, Delinquent Water and Sewer Bills 

 

 

  The Water Department has mailed shut-off notices and posted non-owner 

occupied properties as part of the City’s bi-annual shut off procedures.  Notices were 

mailed for 909 delinquent accounts in the amount of $287,384.09. 

 

  The last day for payment to avoid being on the FINAL list will be Friday, 

April 16, 2010.  The last day that we will accept personal checks as payment on these 

delinquent accounts will be April 5th.  After that we will require cash, cashier's checks, 

or money orders. 

 

  Actual shut offs will begin on April 19, 2010. 

 

 



      

       March 31, 2010 

 

 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

From:  Mary M. Corriveau, City Manager 

 

Subject: Federal Appropriations Request, Senator Charles E. Schumer  

 

 

  The City received notice that Senator Schumer has advanced an FY2011 

appropriations request to the Interior & Environment Subcommittee on the City’s behalf 

to support the abatement of impact to the Black River resulting from the combined sewer 

overflow at the Engine Street Outfall.  As discussed by City Engineer Kurt Hauk, this is 

the most problematic outfall within the City and will need to be addressed as part of the 

City’s Long Term Control Plan.  Staff will continue to work with Senator Schumer’s 

Office and keep the City Council up to date as this request moves through the 

appropriation’s process. 

 

     

 



      

       March 31, 2010 

 

 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

From:  Mary M. Corriveau, City Manager 

 

Subject: Fiscal Year 2008-09 Audit Report 

 

 

  The March 1, 2010 City Council agenda package contained a copy of the 

independent audit report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 as prepared by Poulsen 

& Podvin, P.C.  If the City Council wishes, Auditor Laurie J. Podvin is available to walk 

through the audit report with the City Council at the April 12, 2010 work session 

meeting.   

 

   



        March 31, 2010 

 

 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

From:  Mary M. Corriveau, City Manager 

 

Subject: Funding Request, Jefferson County Agricultural Society 

 

 

 Attached for City Council review and consideration is a request from the 

Jefferson County Agricultural Society for funding to support the operation of the 

Jefferson County Fair.  Society President Robert D. Simpson is asking that the City 

Council consider allocating dollars from either this year’s or next year’s Hotel/Motel 

Occupancy Tax (Tourism) collections.  

 





      

        March 31, 2010 

 

 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

From:  Mary M. Corriveau, City Manager 

 

Subject: Annual Drinking Water Quality Report for 2009 

 

 

  All customers being supplied water from the City of Watertown’s Water 

Treatment Facility will receive, in the month of April, a copy of the City’s Annual 

Drinking Water Quality Report for calendar year 2009.  A copy of this report is available 

on the City’s website, at www.watertown-ny.gov  under the Water Department. 

 

 

   

http://www.watertown-ny.gov/


        March 31, 2010 

 

 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

From:  Mary M. Corriveau, City Manager 

 

Subject: Grant from Jefferson County Local Development Corporation  

 

 

  Attached for City Council review is a copy of the resolution adopted by 

the Jefferson County Local Development Corporation on March 4, 2010 approving a 

grant to the City of Watertown from their Community Development Fund.  I wanted to 

share this with the City Council, as the resolution “urges the City to make a similar 

request to the Watertown Local development Corporation” for funding to support the 

infrastructure work the City is undertaking in the Gaffney Drive area. 

 

  Staff is looking for guidance from the City Council regarding making a 

similar request of the Watertown Local Development Corporation.  





        March 31, 2010 

 

 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

From:  Mary M. Corriveau, City Manager 

 

Subject: Boards and Commissions  

 

 

  Attached for City Council review is a listing of Board and Commission 

appointments that expire during the months of April and May.     

 

  If Council would like my office to contact these individuals regarding 

reappointment, please let me know.  





                 April 1, 2010 

 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

From:  Mary M. Corriveau, City Manager 

 

Subject: 2010-11 City Council Goals and Objectives 

 

 

  In a January 22, 2010 memorandum to the Mayor and City Council 

Members, I asked the members to share, by February 8, 2010, their written assessment of 

the City’s accomplishments for Fiscal year 2009-10 and their individual Goals and 

Objectives for FY 2010-11 for inclusion in the upcoming year’s budget document.  

During the past month, I have had the opportunity to meet with each of the members face 

to face to discuss their upcoming year’s goals and objectives.  Attached is each member’s 

original submission for this year’s budget along with a summary of the prioritized goals 

discussed with each of the members.   

 

  To provide Staff with clear guidance regarding the City Council’s Goals 

and Objectives for the year ahead, I would ask that the City Council take some time 

during the budget deliberations to discuss members’ individual goals and objectives and 

reach consensus on overall Goals and Objectives for the upcoming fiscal year.      

 

  Additionally, I would recommend that during the upcoming year the City 

Council set aside time to go through a strategic planning process and develop a Strategic 

Plan for the City.  It has been nearly eight years since the City Council and Key Staff 

Members gathered at Thompson Park and developed the City’s Mission, Vision and 

Guiding Principles.  These statements are included as part of the City Budget presented 

each year, however there has been no formal review of these or the goals and objectives 

established since 2002.  During this planning process, we should review our established 

Mission, Vision and Guiding Principles to make sure they are consistent with our current 

beliefs, and then work to define a Strategic Plan that serves as the framework to connect 

our vision, our mission and values, to our goals and objectives, and our programs and 

projects.   

 

  This process will help us align the City’s priorities with changing 

conditions and new opportunities; create shared commitments among Council Members, 

City Staff and residents regarding short and long-term endeavors; assess the City’s 

present and future strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats; and maintain 

continuity on long-term projects and policies.   

  

  Once adopted, this Strategic Plan should be the City’s call to action, and 

should not just be words on paper.  The value of the plan will lie not in having it, but in 

using it to focus the organization.  If the City Council is prepared to work on developing 

a Strategic Plan, I will engage a facilitator to help us navigate through the process.   

 

 
         



INDIVIDUAL COUNCIL MEMBER GOALS AND OBJECTIVES  

Submitted in response to City Manager’s Request 



















        March 31, 2010 

 

 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

From:  Mary M. Corriveau, City Manager 

 

Subject: Executive Summary Report, Short Term, High Intensity 

 Monitoring Program  

 

 

 Included in the March 15, 2010 City Council agenda was a copy of the 

Executive Summary report prepared by Chief Operator Michael J. Sligar on the 

monitoring done at the City of Watertown’s Pollution Control Plant in connection with 

the facility being used as a disposal site for “flowback” wastewater extracted from the 

Ross #1 well in Otsego County New York.    

 

 Mr. Sligar suggested the Executive Summary be provided to the City 

Council as the “full report is highly technical, comprised of detailed laboratory reports 

written in acronyms, symbols and signs, and the acute toxicity testing report; it's a 

difficult read for technicians.”  The full report is available for City Council review in my 

office, should you wish to read it.   

 

 Since the March 15, 2010 meeting, Mr. Sligar has forwarded to me a 

Notice of Intent to Dispose from Gastem-USA.  As Mr. Sligar states in the accompanying 

email to me, this is a request to discharge and carries no more weight than that, as any 

discharges would need to be approved by the Department of Environmental Conservation 

and the City of Watertown before this could happen. 

 

 Mr. Sligar will be in attendance at the April 5, 2010 City Council meeting 

to answer any questions the Council may have regarding the findings and the request 

from Gastem-USA.   

 






	April 5, 2010 City Council Agenda
	Cover Report - Resolution No. 1 - Accepting Bid for 13 Heat Pumps at the Flower Memorial Library, Derouin's Plumbing and Heating
	Resolution No. 1
	Supporting Documentation

	Cover Report - Resolution No. 2 - Accepting Bid for Slurry Pumps for Pollution Control Facility, Fluid  Kinetics Inc.
	Resolution No. 2
	Supporting Documentation

	Cover Report - Resolution No. 3 - Summer 2010 Sidewalk Improvement Special Assessment Program, District #6
	Resolution No. 3
	Supporting Documentation

	Cover Report - Resolution No. 4 - Request for Site Plan Approval for the Construction of 180 Square Feet, 650 Square Feet and 2,000 Square Feet Building Additions for Tilted Kilt at 1050 Arsenal Street, Parcel No. 8-47-101.001
	Resolution No. 4
	Supporting Documentation

	Cover Report - Ordinance No. 1 - Approving the Zone Amendment Request Submitted by Ryan Churchill of GYMO P.C. on behalf of Patrick Donegan of Millennium Development to Amend Planned Development District No. 23, Parcels Nos. 8-53-102.001, 8-53-103.100, 8-53-106.100, 8-53-107, 8-53-108.100, 8-53-110 and 8-53-114
	Ordinance No. 1
	Supporting Documentation

	Cover Report - Local Law No. 1 - Amending Local Law No. 1 of 1994 as Amended by Local Law No. 6 of 1995, Local Law No. 1 of 2001, Local Law No. 1 of 2003, Local Law No. 7 of 2005 and Local Law No. 14 of 2005, Revising the DesignatedBoundaries of the Watertown Empire Zone
	Local Law No. 1
	Supporting Documentation

	7:30 p.m. Public Hearing on Draft Local Waterfront Revitalization Program
	Staff Report - Bi-Annual Shut-Offs, Delinquent Water and Sewer Bills
	Staff Report - Federal Appropriations Request, Senator Charles E. Schumer
	Staff Report - Fiscal Year 2008-09 Audit Report
	Staff Report - Funding Request, Jefferson County Agricultural Society
	Supporting Documentation

	Staff Report - Annual Drinking Water Quality Report for 2009
	Staff Report - Grant from Jefferson County Local Development Corporation
	Supporting Documentation

	Staff Report - Boards and Commissions
	Supporting Documentation

	Staff Report - 2010-11 City Council Goals and Objectives
	Supporting Documentation

	Staff Report - Executive Summary Report, Short Term, High Intensity Monitoring Program
	Supporting Documentation




